

The following names were placed in nomination:

The name of Albin A. Mathiowetz was placed in nomination for First Assistant Chief Clerk by McGuire.

The name of Teresa B. Kittridge was placed in nomination for Second Assistant Chief Clerk by Olson, K.

The name of Ronald G. Lawrence was placed in nomination for Postmaster by Jacobs.

The name of Soliving K. Kong was placed in nomination for Assistant Postmaster by Trimble.

The name of Margaret M. Olsen was placed in nomination for Assistant Sergeant at Arms by Osthoff.

The name of LeClair G. Lambert was placed in nomination for Assistant Sergeant at Arms by Rodosovich.

The name of Frank J. Strohmayer was placed in nomination for Index Clerk by Hausman.

The name of the Reverend Dr. Donald M. Meisel was placed in nomination for House Chaplain by Rest.

There being no further nominations, the Speaker declared the nominations closed.

The Chief Clerk called the roll on the election of the other officers and the following members voted for the other officers:

| | | | | | | |
|--------------|------------|---------------|-------------|-----------|------------|------------|
| Abrams | Dauner | Haukoos | Koppendraye | Mosel | Perlt | Tomassoni |
| Anderson, I. | Davids | Hausman | Krinkie | Munger | Peterson | Tompkins |
| Anderson, R. | Dawkins | Holsten | Krueger | Murphy | Pugh | Trimble |
| Asch | Dehler | Hugoson | Lasley | Neary | Reding | Tunheim |
| Battaglia | Delmont | Huntley | Leppik | Nelson | Rest | Van Dellen |
| Bauerly | Dempsey | Jacobs | Lieder | Ness | Rice | Vickerman |
| Beard | Dorn | Jaros | Limmer | Olson, E. | Rodosovich | Wagenius |
| Bergson | Erhardt | Jefferson | Lindner | Olson, K. | Rukavina | Waltman |
| Bertram | Evans | Jennings | Lourey | Olson, M. | Sarna | Weaver |
| Bettermann | Farrell | Johnson, A. | Luther | Onnen | Seagren | Wejckman |
| Bishop | Frerichs | Johnson, R. | Lynch | Opatz | Sekhon | Welle |
| Blatz | Garcia | Johnson, V. | Macklin | Orenstein | Skoglund | Wenzel |
| Brown, C. | Girard | Kahn | Mahon | Orfield | Smith | Winter |
| Brown, K. | Goodno | Kalis | Mariani | Osthoff | Solberg | Wolf |
| Carlson | Greenfield | Kelley | McCollum | Ostrom | Sparby | Worke |
| Carruthers | Greiling | Kelso | McGuire | Ozment | Stanisus | Workman |
| Clark | Gruenes | Kinkel | Milbert | Pauly | Steensma | Spk. Long |
| Commers | Gutknecht | Klinzing | Molnau | Pawlenty | Sviggum | |
| Cooper | Hasskamp | Knickerbocker | Morrison | Pelowski | Swenson | |

The nominees, having received a majority of the votes cast, were declared duly elected to their respective offices.

OATH OF OFFICE

The oath of office was administered to those elected to the above offices by the Speaker.

Welle offered the following resolution and moved its adoption:

Be It Resolved, That the Temporary Rules of the House for this session, the 78th Regular Session, shall be the same as the Permanent Rules of the House for the last session, the 77th Regular Session, as they existed on Thursday, April 16, 1992, with the following exceptions:

Rule 1.10 is amended to read:

1.10 TAX AND APPROPRIATION BILLS GIVEN PRECEDENCE. Any bill relating to taxes or raising revenue ~~shall be acted upon whenever requested by the Chair of the Committee on Taxes~~, and any appropriation bill, which has

had its second reading, shall be acted upon whenever requested by the Chair of the Committee on Appropriations Ways and Means or a designee of the Chair.

Rule 1.16 is amended to read:

1.16 TIME LIMIT FOR CONSIDERATION OF BILLS. If 20 legislative days after a bill has been referred to committee or division (other than a bill in Appropriations the Committee on Ways and Means, a finance committee, or the finance division of a standing committee) no report has been made upon it by the committee or division, its chief author may request that it be returned to the House and the request shall be entered in the Journal for the day. The committee or division shall have ten calendar days thereafter in which to vote upon the bill requested. If the committee or division fails to vote upon it within the ten days, the chief author may, at any time within five calendar days thereafter, present a written demand to the Speaker for its immediate return to the House. The demand shall be entered in the Journal for that day and shall constitute the demand of the House. The bill shall then be considered to be in the possession of the House, given its second reading and placed at the end of General Orders.

Such bill is subject to re-reference by a majority vote of the whole House. If the motion to re-refer is made on the day of the demand or within one legislative day thereafter, the motion shall take precedence over all other motions except privileged motions and shall be in order at any time.

In regular session in the odd-numbered year after Friday, May 10, 1991, and in the even-numbered year after, the House shall not act on bills other than those recommended by conference committee reports or the Committee on Rules and Legislative Administration, and those bills contained in messages from the Senate or from the Governor.

Rule 5.07 is amended to read:

5.07 FINANCE BILLS CARRYING AN APPROPRIATION. Any finance bill, whether originating in the House or Senate, ~~carrying an appropriation~~, or which may involve any present or future financial obligation on the part of the State, after being reported to the House, shall be referred, or re-referred, as the case may be, to the appropriate finance committee on Appropriations or standing committee with a finance division for action ~~by that, and shall be thereafter re-referred to the Committee on Ways and Means~~. Any committee, other than the a finance committee on Appropriations or standing committee with a finance division, to which such bill has been referred shall note in its report that the bill carries an appropriation.

Rule 5.08 is amended to read:

5.08 BILLS AFFECTING STATE GOVERNMENT POWERS AND STRUCTURE. Any bill, whether originating in the House or the Senate, which creates or reestablishes any new department, agency, commission, board, task force, advisory committee or council, or bureau, or any other such entity, or which substantially changes or alters the organization of or delegates emergency rulemaking authority to or exempts from rulemaking any department or agency thereof of state government, or substantially changes, alters, vests or divests official rights, powers, or duties of any official, department or agency of the state government or any institution under its control, after being reported to the House, shall be referred, or re-referred, as the case may be, to the Committee on Governmental Operations and Gaming for action by that committee. Prior to the deadline set by Rule 9.03, any committee other than the Committee on Governmental Operations and Gaming to which such bill is referred shall, in its report, recommend re-referral to the Committee on Governmental Operations and Gaming. After the deadline set by Rule 9.03, a report shall recommend re-referral to the Committee on Rules and Legislative Administration.

This rule does not apply to the omnibus bill on taxation, ~~the education finance bill~~, or the omnibus appropriations finance bills for: capital investment; state government; health and human resources services; K-12 education; higher education; economic development, infrastructure and regulation; judiciary; or environment and natural resources. But, if those bills contain provisions that would create or reestablish a commission, board, task force, advisory committee or council, or other such entity, then the chair of the Committee on Taxes, ~~the chair of the Committee on Education, or the chair of a division of the Committee on Appropriations~~, as the appropriate finance committee or standing committee with a finance division, must communicate the inclusion of the provision to the chair of the Committee on Rules and Legislative Administration prior to consideration of the matter on the floor.

All other bills in the ~~House Committees on Appropriations~~ finance committees and standing committees with finance divisions and the Committee on Taxes are also exempt from this rule except for bills to create or reestablish a commission, board, task force, advisory committee or council, or other such entity. Prior to the deadline set by Rule

9.03, those bills shall be re-referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations and Gaming. After that deadline, the bills shall be re-referred to the Committee on Rules and Legislative Administration.

Rule 5.10 is amended to read:

5.10 WAYS AND MEANS COMMITTEE; RESOLUTION; EFFECT ON EXPENDITURES AND TAX BILLS. The Committee on Ways and Means shall hold hearings as necessary to determine state expenditures and taxes for the coming fiscal biennium. In regular session, not later than ten days following the last available state general fund revenue and expenditure forecast for the coming fiscal biennium prepared during the session, the Committee on Ways and Means shall report a budget resolution to the House for consideration. The budget resolution shall take the form of a House resolution that sets the maximum limitation on expenditures and taxes for the coming fiscal biennium for the general fund and an amount to be set aside as a budget reserve. The limitation is effective, if adopted, unless the House adopts a different limitation in a subsequent budget resolution that accounts for increases or decreases in general fund revenues and expenditures anticipated for the current fiscal biennium.

No bill described in Rule 5.07 or 5.09 shall be given its second reading until the House has received a statement from the Committee on Ways and Means certifying that the major expenditure and tax bills are reconciled and do not exceed the limitation specified in the budget resolution for the general fund. Major expenditure and tax bills are: the higher education appropriation finance bill; the K-12 education finance bill; the environment and natural resources appropriation finance bill; the health and human resources appropriation services finance bill; the state government appropriation finance bill; the economic development, infrastructure and regulation appropriation finance bill; the education judiciary finance bill; the omnibus capital investment bill; and the omnibus tax bill. However, a bill may be given its second reading by special authorization of the Committee on Ways and Means or by majority vote of the whole House. A special authorization may be reported by an oral notice to the House from the Chair of the Committee on Ways and Means or a designee of the Chair stating that the fiscal impact of a bill will be accounted for in the reconciliation statement.

~~The Committee on Appropriations~~ Each finance committee, and finance division of a standing committee, and the Committee on Taxes, upon recommending passage of any bill described in Rule 5.07 or 5.09, shall provide to the Committee on Ways and Means a fiscal statement on the bill.

After the House has received a reconciliation statement from the Committee on Ways and Means, the House shall not give a second reading to any bill described in Rule 5.07 or 5.09 other than the major expenditure and tax bills. However, a bill may be given its second reading after the House has received from the Committee on Ways and Means a statement certifying that the fiscal impact of the bill is within the guidelines of the budget resolution, or after authorization by majority vote of the whole House. The statement of the Committee on Ways and Means may be reported orally by the Chair of the Committee on Ways and Means or a designee of the Chair.

Rule 6.01 is amended to read:

6.01 COMMITTEES. Standing committees of the House shall be appointed by the Speaker as follows:

Agriculture

Appropriations

~~Divisions:~~ Economic Development, Infrastructure and Regulation
Education
Environment and Natural Resources
Human Resources
State Government

Capital Investment

Commerce and Economic Development

Divisions: International Trade, Technology and Economic Development
Tourism and Small Business

Economic Development, Infrastructure and Regulation Finance

~~Division:~~ International Trade and Technology

Education

Divisions: K-12 Education Finance
Higher Education Finance

~~Energy~~

Environment and Natural Resources

Environment and Natural Resources Finance

Ethics

Financial Institutions and Insurance

Division: ~~Banking~~

General Legislation, Veterans Affairs and ~~Gaming~~ Elections

Divisions: ~~Elections~~
Veterans Affairs

Governmental Operations and Gaming

Division: State Government Structures Finance

Health and Human Services

Divisions: Health and Housing Finance
Human Services Finance

Housing

Judiciary

Division: ~~Criminal Justice~~ Judiciary Finance

Labor-Management Relations

Local Government and Metropolitan Affairs

~~Redistricting~~Regulated Industries and Energy

Rules and Legislative Administration

Taxes

Transportation and Public Transit

Ways and Means

Rule 6.03 is amended to read:

6.03 COMMITTEE MEETING SCHEDULE. The Speaker shall prepare a schedule of committee meetings, fixing as far as practicable the day of the week and the hour for the regular meeting time of each committee. The schedule of committee meetings shall officially be made available to the news media. The chair of any committee holding a special meeting or making a change in the regular schedule of meetings shall give written notice which may be announced from the desk and shall be posted on the bulletin board at least one day in advance of the change.

The chair of each committee, division, or subcommittee shall as far as practicable give three days notice of any meeting. The notice shall include the date, time, place and agenda for the meeting.

Rule 6.05 is amended to read:

6.05 SUBCOMMITTEES. The chair of a committee shall appoint the chair and members of each subcommittee with the advice and consent of the Speaker. The chair or the committee may refer bills to subcommittee. Any subcommittee may make such investigation or exercise such authority as is delegated to it by the chair or the committee.

Rule 7.05 is amended to read:

7.05 BUDGET AND PURCHASING. The Director of House administrative services shall prepare a biennial budget for the House which must be approved by the Committee on Rules and Legislative Administration before it is submitted to the Committee on Appropriations Governmental Operations and Gaming for consideration by the State Government Finance Division.

The Director shall be the agent of the House of Representatives for the purchase of supplies. The Director shall seek the lowest possible prices and shall file timely reports of expenditures made with the Committee on Rules and Legislative Administration.

Rule 9.03 is amended to read:

9.03 DEADLINES. In regular session in odd-numbered years, committee reports on bills favorably acted upon by a committee in the house of origin after Friday, April 12, 1991 1993, and committee reports on bills originating in the other house favorably acted upon by a committee after Wednesday, April 24, 1991 1993, shall be referred in the House of Representatives to the Committee on Rules and Legislative Administration for disposition. In even-numbered years, committee reports on bills favorably acted upon by a committee of the house of origin after and committee reports on bills originating in the other house favorably acted upon by a committee after shall be referred in the House of Representatives to the Committee on Rules and Legislative Administration for disposition. However, referral is not required after the first deadline when, by the second deadline, a committee acts on a bill that is a companion to a bill that has then been acted upon by the first deadline in the Senate.

Bills in the House finance committees on Appropriations and standing committees with finance divisions and the Committee on Taxes, and the education finance bill in the Committee on Education, are exempt from this rule and need not be re-referred, except as follows: a bill other than an omnibus tax or appropriation finance bill that includes provisions that create or reestablish a commission, board, task force, advisory committee or council, or other entity, shall be re-referred to the Committee on Rules and Legislative Administration if it remains in committee after the deadlines set by this rule.

All deadlines referred to in Rules 1.16, 3.04, 5.08, 5.10, 6.11, 9.03, and 10.1 shall not apply until new Permanent Rules have been adopted.

The Temporary Rules of the House for the 78th Session shall apply to the order of business of parliamentary practice until the Committee on Rules and Legislative Administration to be appointed by the Speaker shall have made its report and new Permanent Rules have been adopted.

The question was taken on the adoption of the temporary rules and the roll was called. There were 130 yeas and 0 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

| | | | | | | |
|--------------|------------|--------------|----------|-----------|------------|------------|
| Abrams | Dauner | Haukoos | Krinkie | Munger | Peterson | Tompkins |
| Anderson, I. | Davids | Hausman | Krueger | Murphy | Pugh | Trimble |
| Anderson, R. | Dawkins | Holsten | Lasley | Neary | Reding | Tunheim |
| Asch | Dehler | Hugoson | Leppik | Nelson | Rest | Van Dellen |
| Battaglia | Delmont | Huntley | Lieder | Ness | Rice | Vickerman |
| Bauerly | Dempsey | Jacobs | Limmer | Olson, E. | Rodosovich | Wagenius |
| Beard | Dorn | Jaros | Lindner | Olson, K. | Rukavina | Waltman |
| Bergson | Erhardt | Jefferson | Lourey | Olson, M. | Sarna | Weaver |
| Bertram | Evans | Jennings | Luther | Onnen | Seagren | Wejcman |
| Bettermann | Farrell | Johnson, A. | Lynch | Opatz | Sekhon | Welle |
| Bishop | Frerichs | Johnson, R. | Macklin | Orenstein | Skoglund | Wenzel |
| Blatz | Garcia | Johnson, V. | Mahon | Orfield | Smith | Winter |
| Brown, C. | Girard | Kahn | Mariani | Osthoff | Soilberg | Wolf |
| Brown, K. | Goodno | Kalis | McCollum | Ostrom | Sparby | Worke |
| Carlson | Greenfield | Kelley | McGuire | Ozment | Stanis | Workman |
| Carruthers | Greiling | Kelso | Milbert | Pauly | Steensma | Spk. Long |
| Clark | Gruenes | Kinkel | Molnau | Pawlenty | Sviggum | |
| Commers | Gutknecht | Klinzing | Morrison | Pelowski | Swenson | |
| Cooper | Hasskamp | Koppendrayar | Mosel | Perlt | Tomassoni | |

The motion prevailed and the Temporary Rules of the House for the 78th Session were adopted.